
Please ask for:
LINDA COOTE
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5421
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
Linda.coote@gosport.gov.uk

Wednesday 9th September 2020

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Climate Change Board
DATE: 17 September 2020
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Virtually
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote

PAUL GRANT
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor (Councillor Hook (ex-Officio))
Councillor Mrs Huggins (Mayor) and Councillor Jessop (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs Morgan (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Mrs Batty
Councillor Blackman
Councillor Carter
Councillor Casey
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Earle

Councillor Mrs Hook
Councillor Hylands
Councillor Johnston
Councillor Mitchell
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Raffaelli

Public Document Pack



NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Climate Change Board
17 September 2020

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.

3.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: the Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Tuesday 15th September 2020 .The 
total time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes)

4.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Tuesday 15th September 2020)

5.  ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ON LOCAL 
HABITATS 

This report sets out Councillor Mitchell’s request in accordance with 
Standing Order 3.7.2 for this issue to be considered at the Climate 
Change Board. It also sets out Councillor Jessop’s proposal that a 
Task and Finish Group is set up to consider the issue in further detail 
and report back to the Climate Change Board.

6.  CLIMATE CHANGE UPDATE 

To provide Members’ an update on progress on the Climate Change 
Action Plan.

7.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



Climate Change Board
17 September 2020



Board/Committee: CLIMATE CHANGE BOARD
Date of meeting: 17 SEPTEMBER 2020
Title: ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ON 

LOCAL HABITATS
Author: COUNCILLOR JESSOP AND COUNCILLOR MITCHELL
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

This report sets out Councillor Mitchell’s request in accordance with Standing Order 
3.7.2 for this issue to be considered at the Climate Change Board. It also sets out 
Councillor Jessop’s proposal that a Task and Finish Group is set up to consider the 
issue in further detail and report back to the Climate Change Board.

Recommendation

That the Board approves the establishment of a task and finish group to 
consider:

i. external agencies and organisations that the Council should 
directly consult and engage with on this matter

ii. actions that the Council is able to procure or carry out itself or 
with partners in relation to the issue

and to report back to the Climate Change Board in no less than six months on 
the outcomes of the task and finish group’s work

1.0 Background

1.1 Members are enabled by standing order 3.7.2 of the Constitution to request 
that particular matters are to appear on the Agenda of a Board or 
Committee. Such requests are to be considered by the Borough Solicitor in 
consultation with the Chairperson of the relevant Board. 

1.2 Councillor Mitchell contacted the Borough Solicitor with a request (set out 
below at paragraph 2.1) by email on 27 August 2020. The request was 
considered and accepted on 3 September 2020 by the Borough Solicitor and 
Councillor Jessop on the basis that the matter should form the subject of a 
joint report in the names of both Members to include a proposal that a task 
and finish group be set up to consider the issue and the Council’s remit to 
assist in its resolution. 

2.0 Report

2.1 Councillor Mitchell’s request set out that the Board should consider 
contingency plans for wildlife in the Borough due to climate change causing 
the increased incidence of fish die-off; directly due to the summer heat and 

Agenda Item 5



drought conditions. The request further set out that all of Gosport's inlets and 
Fort Brockhurst moat had suffered from the distressing sight of dead fish in 
the recent heat. This problem is likely to repeat each year due to increased 
heat, summer droughts and the resultant algal blooms causing problems to 
Gosport's wildlife.

2.2 The initial view from Council Officers is that this issue is likely to require 
engagement with external organisations in the public and third sectors as 
well as environmental and community groups. It is anticipated that action 
required as a result of any habitat loss or damage, and/or debate on the 
matter, may be the responsibility of external organisations with particular 
statutory responsibilities so it will be important to establish the exact remit of 
the Council in this area.

2.3 In particular, Council Officers are aware that algal blooms are caused by 
excess amounts of nitrates in the Solent catchment, which has resulted in a 
stop on planning consents for new housing in the Solent region. Whilst a 
localised solution has been arrived at with Natural England to enable 
planning consents to now be granted, the wider environmental issue 
remains. Water companies and local environmental groups and charities will 
have a stake in seeing this issue improved.

2.4 In response to Cllr Mitchell’s request, Cllr Jessop suggests that the matter 
be considered further by a working group with the assistance of Officers, 
and to report back to the Climate Change Board within not less than six 
months.

3.0 Conclusion

3.1 This report sets out the Members’ request for this matter to be considered by 
the Board.

Financial Services comments: N/A
Legal Services comments: Contained within the report
Equality and Diversity: N/A
Climate Change implications: The report directly relates to how the Council 

can take action in order to mitigate the effects of 
climate change

Crime and Disorder: N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

N/A

Corporate Plan: N/A
Risk Assessment: N/A
Background Papers: None
Appendices: None
Report Author/Lead Officer: Paul Grant, Borough Solicitor and Monitoring 

Officer



Board/Committee: Climate Change Board 
Date of Meeting: September 17th 2020
Title: Climate Change Update               
Author: Julie Petty
Status: FOR APPROVAL

Purpose

To provide Members’ an update on progress on the Climate Change 
Action Plan.

Recommendation

That the board note this report.

1 Background

1.1 The Council approved a Climate Change Strategy on 5th February 
2020 and the development of an associated action plan to facilitate 
its delivery. 

1.2 The Council also established this specific Board to provide the 
governance arrangements for the Council’s response to Climate 
Change.

2 Report

2.1 A draft action plan was produced in March 2020 however the Council 
has since been dealing with COVID19 so its progress was delayed. 

The draft action plan has now been presented to the Council’s 
Section Heads for input and final formulation and is shown in 
Appendix 1.  
 

2.2 The plan has been updated to reflect the post COVID19 situation: 
some actions have been deleted/revised and new actions added.

2.3 The opportunity to embed climate change into a ‘green recovery’ will 
be utilised and although detail at the present is limited as more 
information and ideas emerge, they will be considered accordingly. 
Some basic examples of this include continue the reduced need to 
travel and less provision of face to face services (whilst maintaining 
accessibility) along with strategic opportunities that will also be 
sought. 

Agenda Item 6



2.4 Despite the challenges some actions have progressed:
 Recruitment of Climate Change Officer - new officer to be 

appointed for September 2020
 Calculation of GBC Emissions for baseline
 Sourcing of green electricity for Council use 
 Installation of Solar PV on Leisure Centre due for 

implementation November 2020
 Staff green travel survey produced as part of the Walking and 

Cycling Clean Air Project
 Summer Passport included Climate Change virtual 

engagement with Autumn follow up event planned.

The Community based Greening Campaign http://www.greening-
campaign.org/ will be rolled out during the Autumn.

3 Finance

3.1 Funding for progressed actions has been allocated and requirements 
of other actions will be assessed and if viable funding will be sourced 
at development stage.

4 Risk Assessment

4.1 The Climate Change Strategy and delivery of the action plan (in 
combination with regional and national plans) reduces risks 
associated with failure to mitigate and adapt to Climate Change for 
the Council and Borough.

5 Conclusion

5.1 The Council’s Climate Change Action Plan will facilitate the delivery 
of the Climate Change Strategy. The action plan will be published on 
the website and be monitored and updated as appropriate.

Financial Services comments:
Legal Services comments:
Crime and Disorder: None
Equality and Diversity: An Equality Impact Assessment is not 

required. 
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

Not applicable.

Corporate Plan: This supports the Council’s core value of 
‘deliver effective services’.

Risk Assessment: Not applicable 
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures: None  
Report author/ Lead Officer: Julie Petty (x5381)

http://www.greening-campaign.org/
http://www.greening-campaign.org/




This page is intentionally left blank



Climate Change Action Plan

Reduce carbon emissions from GBC electricity and gas use
Action Lead Officer Cost/impact Start date Completion 

date
Comments

1 Develop plan to improve energy efficiency in 
operational buildings initially via a communal 
rewiring, wall insulation and low energy led 
approaches. 

Julie Smith/Dean 
Pickett 

01/06/2020 TBC 

2 Consider opportunities to reduce GBC street 
lighting energy use (note: review scale of 
consumption as this may not be a high 
impact/priority area).

Julie Smith/Steve 
Ricketts

01/01/2021 31/03/2021

3 Develop plan to reduce energy use in 
operational buildings through behaviour 
change.

Climate Change 
Officer

Will be assessed as 
the plan is 
developed

1/10/2020 31/12/2020

4 Consider options for green electricity for use 
in operational buildings.

Julie Smith Cost neutral 01/04/2020 31/11/2020

5 Review options to expand solar PV. Paul Grant started 30/06/2021 Anticipated any further projects 
will require specialist support 
from PCC

6 Gosport Leisure Centre Solar PV. Paul Grant/Steven 
Ricketts

C £300k as per 
approved P&O 
Board Report

started 31/12/2020 Currently progressing with 
specialist support from PCC

Reduce carbon emissions from GBC fuel
Action Lead Officer Cost/impact Start date Completion 

date
Comments

7 Review options for electrical vehicles. Steven Ricketts 01/01/2021 31/03/2021
8 Consider options for more effective and 

reduced business travel (green days, 
teleconferencing, driver training).

Climate Change 
Officer 

Will be assessed as 
the plan is 
developed

30/09/2020 31/12/2020 COVID19 opportunities to be 
considered. Links to Clean Air 
Project

Reduce GBC Carbon Footprint



Action Lead Officer Cost/impact Start date Completion 
date

Comments

9 Implement training for councillors and staff. Climate Change 
Officer

Will be assessed as 
the plan is 
developed

30/09/2020 31/12/2020

10 Develop Climate Change impact assessment 
process for formal decision making. 

Paul Grant/Julie 
Petty

started 31/10/2020 Integrated EIA to be considered

11 Develop green travel plan for staff can still 
progress.

Sutrans/Climate 
Change Officer

started 31/03/2021 Via Walking and Clean Air Project.

12 Review Procurement Strategy and purchasing 
to incorporate carbon emission reduction and 
sustainability.

Stephanie Lucking 01/12/2020 31/07/2021 To be integrated via Contract 
Procedure Rules.

13 Reduce use of bottle fed water coolers and 
plastic cups.

Climate Change 
Officer 

30/09/2020 31/12/2020

14 Promote a ‘green office’ approach (reduce 
waste, less use of paper, energy efficiency, 
reduce need to travel, recycling etc.) 

Climate Change 
Officer

01/01/2021 30/06/2021

15 New search engine: ecosia. Climate Change 
Officer

30/09/20202 30/11/2020

16 Staff based working group to reduce GBC 
carbon footprint.

Climate Change 
Officer

30/09/2020 30/11/2020 Establish mechanism to capture 
and implement ideas

Reduce Community Carbon Footprint
Action Lead Officer Cost/impact Start date Completion 

date
Comments

17 Support  Greening Campaign - GBC to fund 5 
communities for stage 1 and promote on a 
first come first served basis. 

Climate Change 
Officer

30/09/2020 31/03/2021

18 Increase promotion of energy efficiency offers 
and advice for homes. 

Climate Change 
Officer

30/09/2020 30/06/2021 PCC SLA being considered to deliver 
this work

19 Actively promote the ‘refill scheme’ for water 
bottles. 

Climate Change 
Officer

30/09/2020 31/12/2020 Need to consider COVID19 
implications

20 Implement the walking and cycling clean air Sustrans started 30/06/2021



project. 

Deliver Sustainable Development and Travel
Action Lead Officer Cost/impact Start date Completion 

date
Comments

21 Develop a Gosport Local Cycling & Walking 
Infrastructure Plan (due 2020). 

Andrew Broster Started 30/09/2021 HCC instrumental in delivery. 

22 Include new policies within the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2036: climate change, 
Passivhaus and Zero Carbon development, 
EV charging points, biodiversity net gain, 
trees and hedge coverage.

Jayson Grygiel Winter 
2020

Autumn 20202 Need to review in light of Planning 
for the Future White Paper 
Consultation (ends 29/10/2020).

23 Support habitat gain through a biodiversity 
net gain SPD (due 2021).

Jayson Grygiel Winter 
2021`

Spring/Summer 
2022

Need to review in light of Planning 
for the Future White Paper 
Consultation (ends 29/10/2020).

24 Support habitat gain and improved water 
efficiency through a nutrient neutrality 
strategy (due 2020).

Owen Devine Winter 
2020

On going Solent Nutrient Funding being 
developed and funding requested.

25 Promote the expansion of the Bus Rapid 
Transit system (ongoing). 

Andrew Broster Started On going Assist HCC in the development and 
any future expansion of scheme.



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ON LOCAL HABITATS
	6 CLIMATE CHANGE UPDATE
	20200907 Climate Change Action Plan


